**1. NAME**

Stonewall

AND/OR HISTORIC:

Lewis House, Little Falls Plantation

**2. LOCATION**

Falls Road Extension

CITY OR TOWN:

Rocky Mount vicinity

STATE:

North Carolina 27801

CODE: 32

COUNTY:

Nash

CODE: 64

**3. CLASSIFICATION**

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>CATEGORY</th>
<th>OWNER</th>
<th>STATUS</th>
<th>ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>Site</td>
<td>Public</td>
<td>Occupied</td>
<td>Yes: Restricted</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Structure</td>
<td>Private</td>
<td>Unoccupied</td>
<td>No</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Object</td>
<td>Both</td>
<td>Preservation work in progress</td>
<td>Restricted</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

**PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate):**

- Agricultural
- Commercial
- Educational
- Entertainment
- Government
- Industrial
- Military
- Religious
- Private Residence
- Public
- Park
- Other (Specify)

**ACCESSIBILITY TO THE PUBLIC:**

- Transportation
- Comments rental

**4. OTHERS OF PROPERTY**

OWNER'S NAME:

Rocky Mount Mills

STREET AND NUMBER:

Falls Road

CITY OR TOWN:

Rocky Mount 27801

STATE: North Carolina

CODE: 32

**5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION**

COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:

Nash County Court House

STREET AND NUMBER:

P. O. Box 312

CITY OR TOWN:

Nashville, N. C. 27856

STATE: North Carolina

CODE: 32

**6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS**

TITLE OF SURVEY:

Historic American Buildings Survey

DATE OF SURVEY: 1940

- Federal
- State
- County
- Local

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

Library of Congress

STREET AND NUMBER:

East Capital and Independence Avenue, S.E.

CITY OR TOWN:

Washington

STATE: D. C.

CODE: 51
Stonewall takes its name from the heavy granite wall which borders the front lawn along Falls Road extension. This is composed of huge roughly-dressed blocks of irregular ashlar. The house is set in a superb oak grove. There is a U-shaped driveway lined with oaks and similar rows on the eastern side of the lawn and along the wall.

The late Federal house is of brick laid in Flemish bond. It is said to have been built about 1830 and, in the fashion of that time, the brick is painted red with very thin white lines representing the mortar joints. The splayed lintels of the basement and first floor windows are also painted white. The two main floors are raised over a full basement which is entered from ground level. There is a high hip roof with two simple chimneys rising out of each side wall. The five-bay north front, facing the road, features a full Ionic portico. This was constructed about 1915 and replaced the original superimposed pedimented portico which had deteriorated beyond repair. The house received a new cornice at the same time. The central entrance is composed of a typical six-panel Federal door framed by fluted Ionic pilasters. Above is a semi-circular lunette. It is framed by an architrave decorated with foliated paterae alternating with incised triglyphs. The soffit is paneled and the fan has a delicate pattern of leaded lights. At the rear or river front is a two-story wooden addition. Evidence in the brickwork indicates that originally there was a portico on this facade as well. Traditionally, this was the front of the house. This seems to be correct as the doorway is larger than the one on the north front and more elaborately treated with a large rectangular leaded transom. Further support for this view is the fact that the stair ascends from this end of the central hall.

On the interior the house has a full length north–south hall with two rooms on either side. The hall is divided into two unequal sections by a transverse elliptical arch which is framed by an architrave decorated with egg and dart moulding and rests of fluted Ionic pilasters. The north hall is long, relatively narrow, and slightly off-center making the room to the east larger than the one on the west. The south hall contains the stair. It is wider than, but not as long as, the north hall. On either side rise twin elliptical stairs which meet at the second floor level above the arch dividing the halls below. This double stair features simple moulded rails, scrolled at the newels, and plain balusters rectangular in section. There are delicate fret brackets under each tread. The soffits of the stairs are finished with rectangular panels. The rest of the interior woodwork is as fine as the stair. The six-panel doors are framed by simple architraves and have paneled reveals. The overdoors consist of cornices resting on console brackets. The windows are treated in the same way having paneled reveals and window seats. Throughout the house there is pedestal dado with flat panels. It is enriched by a beaded astragal bond beneath the chair rail. The Adam mantels of the principal rooms are extremely well executed. The most elaborate has coupled Ionic colonettes of a most curious order with spiral reeded shafts. The center block features an incised curvilinear foliated design and the pilaster blocks have vases in high relief. The deep cornice shelf is decorated with a
7. beaded astragal band. The overmantel is framed by fluted pilasters which have the same unusual Ionic capitals on the colonettes below. Beneath the usual volutes and egg and dart moulding of the capital is a necking compound of stylized lotus. There is a modillion cornice enriched by a beaded astragal. It does not break over the pilasters and is carried around the room. This same cornice is employed in the north hall and other rooms.
Built on the banks of the Tar River about 1830 by Bennett Bunn, Stonewall was the center of a typical ante-bellum plantation. The Bunn family had been long established in Nash County before Bennett Bunn began the construction of his mansion. His earliest ancestor was David Bunn, who came to Edgecombe County, North Carolina, from Nansemond County, Virginia, in 1752. By the time of the Revolution, the Bunn family was a significant segment of the growing planter class in northeastern North Carolina.

Born in the late eighteenth century, Bennett Bunn became one of the largest and most prosperous of the group. During his early manhood, he began to assemble his lands through purchase and inheritance. His earliest major acquisition was Quarter Plantation which he inherited from his uncle Dunn in 1809. In 1814 Bennett Bunn inherited land from his father, Benjamin Bunn, on Stony Creek and the Tar River. On this land Stonewall was later built. During the next fifteen years Bennett Bunn's agricultural enterprises continued to grow. By 1830 he was one of the wealthiest planters in Nash county. Indicative of his great wealth is the fact that he is known to have owned at least one hundred slaves. The visible symbol of his affluence was Stonewall. It was built on so large a scale and with such a sophistication of design and detail that only a few of the great plantation houses of the state could surpass its elegance. After Bennett Bunn's death in 1849, Stonewall with one hundred acres was purchased by another rich planter, Richard J. Harrison. At his death in 1860 the property was inherited by his nephew, K. H. Lewis. The abolition of slavery and Lewis's death in 1868 brought the plantation to a final turning-point. Most of the farm land was sold to pay Lewis's debts and the land around the house was reduced to thirty acres. Its role as the focal point of a vast plantation was, thus, effectively ended. Lewis's wife remained at Stonewall until her death in 1916, when the property was purchased by Rocky Mount Mills for fifteen thousand dollars. At this time the house needed many repairs and the present portico and rear extension were constructed. The house is presently owned by Rocky Mount Mills and is rented.
8. Waterman in his book *The Early Architecture of North Carolina* said, "In the great, brick, Lewis house near Rocky Mount, is a double-curved stairway, with detail as fine as that of the Montmorenci stairway." The superb stair and especially the erudite treatment of the overdoors, window surrounds, and the fine mantels indicate the presence of a master craftsman whose work is not only of the finest in the state but among the best in the nation. This high standard may also be observed outside in the beautiful romantic planting and the stone wall which cannot be the result of pure chance, but are undoubtedly the remains of a sophisticated landscape design.
**Geographical Data**

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Corner</th>
<th>Latitude</th>
<th>Longitude</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>NW</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>NE</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>SE</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

Approximate acreage of nominated property: 6 1/2

**Instructions**

- Name and Title:
  - John G. Zehmer, Jr., Survey Specialist, and Sherry Ingram, Survey Assistant
- Organization:
  - North Carolina State Department of Archives and History
- City or Town: Raleigh

**State Liaison Officer Certification**

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service. The recommended level of significance of this nomination is:

- National [ ]
- State [ X ]
- Local [ ]

Name: H. G. Jones
Title: Director, North Carolina State Department of Archives and History
Date: April 27, 1970

**National Register Verification**

I hereby certify that this property is included in the National Register.

Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation

Date: [ ]

ATTEST:

Keeper of The National Register

Date: April 27, 1970
Stonewall (Lewis house; Little Falls Plantation)
Falls Road Extension
Rocky Mount vicinity
County Map of Nash County
North Carolina State Highway Commission
scale: 1"/2 miles
January 1, 1970

Latitude
degrees minutes seconds 75° 57' 26"

Longitude
degrees minutes seconds 77° 48' 29"